
found in the cache of all-different perfect tiles found in 1939 at Stratfords Cottage, Penn, close to the other site. These were thought to be trade samples kept at a dwelling adjoining the site. If the dwelling was retained when the move was made to the new site, the samples could have been made at either and the second may have been the last before the trade died out in the late 1360's. 

3. Two of the fragments have the usual minutely thin layer of slip, but the pattern is deeply recessed below the general level of the tile while the sides of the depression show little traces of slip. This seems to establish that some form of printing technique must have been used. J.D. Broadbent 

WEST WYCOMBE ROMANO-BRITISH CEMETERY: RADIOCARBON DATES 
Buckinghamshire's claim to an early Romano-British inhumation cemetery at West Wycombe has to be withdrawn. 
Two radiocarbon dates obtained from skeletal material excavated at this cemetery and published in Records of Bucks. Vol. XXI (1979), 81-89, have had to be revised owing to a systematic error recently discovered in the equipment used at the Sydney University Radiocarbon Laboratory. The revised dates are: 

Lab. No.: SUA-1115A Correction: -340 yr Revised Age (yr b.p.): 1580 ± 120 Revised Date: a.d. 370 ± 120 
SUA-1115B -300 yr 1580 ± 90 a.d. 370 ± 190 

These dates bring the cemetery into line with a number of other Late Roman inhumation burials. 
Michael Farley, Bucks. County Museum Richard Wright, University of Sydney 

THE MUSEUM 
The principal archaeological activities were the excavations, grant-aided from the Depart­ment of the Environment, in George Street, Aylesbury and at Iver on the probable line of the M25; details are given elsewhere in the Records. 
Rosemary Ewles left the Museum at the end of March to take up an appointment as Curator of the Embroiderers' Guild Collection at Hampton Court. During the seven years that she was in Aylesbury, she made a major 

but we were fortunate in having the services of two former students of the Department of Museum Studies at Leicester University on a temporary basis. This meant that most time during the year was spent on the cataloguing of collections and dealing with enquiries. 
A small temporary display was arranged to commemorate the centenary of the death of Benjamin Disraeli which included some prints and documents from the Society's collection. 

contribution to the Museum's work, particular- The Museum commissioned a quilt from ly in display and in the much-needed reorganis- Deborah Dallyn, who works in Milton Keynes, ation of stores. As the Museum was having a and this very fine example of modern work is staff review it was not possible to appoint a an important addition to the collection of permanent Keeper of History and Archaeology modern crafts made in the County which was 129 



initiated a few years ago. 
A further series of lunchtime lectures was given in the Museum in the early summer. The subjects ranged from 'Rescuing Ice Age 

Animals from the Chilterns' to 'The Present State of Wildlife in Bucks' and 'Some Eight­eenth Century Houses', and they were very well attended with an average of sixty people present. 

REVIEWS 
Britons and Saxons:. the Chi/tern Region 400-700. K. Rutherford Davis, pp. xiv + 172. Phillimore & Co. Ltd, 1982. £9.95. 

By 'the Chiltern region' Mr. Rutherford Davis means Buckinghamshire, Hertfordshire, Bedfordshire south of the Ouse, with Bedford itself, and the seven south-eastern hundreds of Oxfordshire. It thus comprises the Chiltern zone proper and the Ouse-Thame basin. These contrasted but contiguous areas formed the major part of the old Catuvellaunian territory ruled from Verulamium, which lasted until Cuthwulf defeated Catraut at Bedford in 571 (the author prefers 'Cadrawd', and that war­lord would have pronounced his name thus, though spelling did not yet recognise lenition). Until then, the frontiers fixed after Mount Badon had held. This was the pivotal event in the long process which had begun at Dorchester-on-Thames before 400 and was hardly completed three centuries later; Wealabroc 'Britons' brook', recorded in 792 on the border of the British refuge of Bernwood, could be a later name, when broc had replaced burna. 
Britons and Saxons is a bold endeavour to bring together different strands of evidence -written sources, place-names, physical remains - in a first attempt to write the total history of this region during what we must still call the Dark Ages. It is a region, though it did not become, or at least did not remain, a kingdom. 
Mr. Rutherford Davis fully accepts the late Dr. J .R. Morris's contention that all the 5th century Saxon sites in our area were the stations 

of auxiliary forces, located not where they would have chosen but where the British authorities decided to place them, on main roads and near river-crossings. In particular, he interprets Walton beside Aylesbury as such a garrison, and your reviewer thinks he is probably right. He could have cited the well­worn limestone floors of the earliest Saxon sunken houses, the horse gear, the counters for reckoning, the absence of property boundaries within the palisade and the military buckle with horse-heads, which may have turned a Germanic headman into a federate cavalry officer. 
The central mystery is what happened in the Chilterns, especially the Bucks Chilterns, where the invaders did not settle until well into the seventh century, except along the Thames valley and at Wycombe (is this a wic-ham by a Roman vicus?). Besides the lack of pagan Saxon traces, there is an almost complete absence of the normal habitative place-name elements (ham, -ingas, -ingham, worth and even tun). Instead, the Chiltern hamlets were named from hills, valleys, heaths, streams, woods, glades, stones and water-meadows. Mr. Rutherford Davis's solution is that even in middle Saxon times the delectable Chiltern valleys were still occupied by a Celtic population, the ancestors of the abnormally high proportion of servi recorded in the inner Chilterns in the Domesday survey (Mr. Chenevix Trench had already associated this with the concentration of villas, cf. the comment on p. 117). This study seeks to accomodate the Ci/ternsa?te within the Chilterns proper, though the 4,000 hides assigned to them in the Mercian assessment of 
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